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Ocean Park aspires to be the world leader in providing excellent guest
experiences in a theme park environment connecting people with nature.
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Our Mission znwes

Ocean Park provides all guests with memorable experiences that combine
entertainment and education, while inspiring life long learning and
conservation involvement. Our aim is to maintain a healthy financial status,
while offering guests a diverse range of activities at competitive prices.
Ocean Park exists for the public’s benefit and strives to deliver the highest
standards of safety, animal care, products and guest service.
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The world has been through some volatile
times in the past 12 months. As an active
participant in the global community, it

was inevitable that Ocean Park would
experience its fair share of the upside and
downside opportunities.....Still, Ocean Park
demonstrated its resilience, and produced
its 5th best financial surplus, while recording
the 3rd best attendance in our history.
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Thriving In A Dynamic Global Environment

The world has been through some volatile times in the past 12 months. As an
active participant in the global community, it was inevitable that Ocean Park
would experience its fair share of the upside and downside opportunities. So,
it was a real credit to Hong Kong's People’s Park that we achieved attendance
of over 4.8 million in 2008/2009, which is just 5% off the 5.03 million record for
the year prior. This was achieved despite a time of global financial turmoil, an
unprecedented number of heavy rain warnings and typhoons, and the outbreak
of the human swine flu. These were some of the key factors that impacted
tourism, consumer spending, as well as attendance at Ocean Park. Still, Ocean
Park demonstrated its resilience, and produced its 5th best financial surplus,
while recording the 3rd best attendance in our history.
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We were also thrilled to receive the latest joint report of the Themed
Entertainment Association (TEA) and Economics Research Associates (ERA),
which named Ocean Park as the world’s 15th-ranked theme park based on
annual attendance.

We keep firmly to our vision to be the world leader in providing immersive and
differential guest experiences in a theme park environment that connects
people with nature. We are also committed to growth, and to reaching out

to our key source markets. In line with this, we eagerly anticipate the future
opening in 2010 of our Beijing office, our third representative office in China,
complementing the facilities in Guangzhou and Shanghai.
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We began the year watching with awe and admiration as China successfully
staged the Beijing 2008 Olympics. With China’s visa policies in the run-up to the
Olympics impacting the numbers entering and exiting China, the flow of guests
to Ocean Park was understandably affected. But the over-riding memory of the
Olympics was the positive way the event portrayed China. Ocean Park echoed

the excitement by supporting the Beijing Olympics through a variety of initiatives.

The year’s highlight at Ocean Park was the fantastic progress of our exciting
HK$5.55 billion Master Redevelopment Project (MRP). Our MRP is a visionary
response to a recovering economy, a more competitive tourism environment,
and our clear recognition that the Park must evolve. We broke ground in 2006
with a target completion date of 2012 when all eight phases of the MRP will be
finished, expanding Ocean Park’s offerings from the 2006 total of 35 to over 70.
In April, we delivered the first MRP attraction area — Amazing Asian Animals. At
the Opening Ceremony, hundreds of Ocean Park staff gave a rousing welcome
as they cheered on our Guest of Honour, the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (HKSAR), Mr Donald Tsang.

Our planned hotel developments — Spa Hotel, Ocean Hotel and Fisherman'’s
Wharf Hotel — will bring a world-class resort concept to complete the Park’s
stunning transformation. The plans have received approval, with conditions,
from the Town Planning Board and we are now moving forward with invitations
for Expressions of Interest, set to go out towards the end of 2009.
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As mentioned earlier, Ocean Park is very much a part of the global community.
We firmly believe that our unyielding commitment to Ocean Park’s founding
mandate of education and conservation has a growing significance in today’s
world. We help our guests gain greater awareness about key global issues such
as climate change, biodiversity and ecosystem losses, fisheries depletion, and
water conservation, and we try to inspire everyone to take action for a better
environment for all. Our vision of “connecting people with nature” remains
truly relevant to our changing world in which people care more than ever about
the future of our planet. Above all, we actively engage with today’s issues.

Our Ocean Park Conservation Foundation, Hong Kong (OPCFHK), for example,
continued to fund a broad range of important scientific research, while our
Ocean Park Academy, Hong Kong (OPAHK) brought creative new educational
programmes for learners of all ages.

Ocean Park is Hong Kong's People’s Park. We connect to the community
through more corporate social responsibility (CSR) programmes than any
comparable park in the world. Since 2006, for example, every Hong Kong
resident has been welcomed to Ocean Park free of charge on their birthday. All
residents over the age of 65 — that's some 880,000 people — enjoy free entry to
Ocean Park. We also provide free entry to holders of the Registration Card for
People with Disabilities, a group which numbers more than 40,000 people. In
total, there are close to 10 CSR initiatives offering free or generously-discounted
entry to the Park.
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We are also keenly aware of our social obligation to help members of our
community to help themselves, and one of the ways we contributed was to
create employment opportunities. When the HKSAR Chief Executive spoke

at the third meeting of the Task Force on Economic Challenges in January,

we voiced strong support for his call to create jobs. We underlined how the
Park was creating 100 new jobs at Amazing Asian Animals, for example, and
adding another 600 jobs with the construction of the Ocean Express funicular
system — at a time when some other enterprises were reducing headcount.

We also highlighted our “Big Five” annual events, which can require as many as
1,000 extra seasonal staff, and pointed to other contracts that created further
employment in the fiscal year. We focused our energies on job training too.
Our Theme Park F&B Training Programme, for example, launched in October
2008, provided valuable opportunities for 25 young people to develop their
talent in the hospitality field. As a partnership with the Labour Department, the
Vocational Training Council, and the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups, this
collaboration enabled Ocean Park to empower these youths through training
and employment.

We manage our future, our expenses, and our expansion activities in a prudent
manner to ensure the continued financial health of Ocean Park. In this way, we
will never become a burden to the Hong Kong taxpayers. Moreover, we continue
our commitment to offer excellent value as a low-price leader among similar
entertainment options.
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Looking back over the past year, | am immensely pleased to note that neither
the economic downturn nor the frequency of typhoons or even the occurrence
of human swine flu was allowed to disrupt our growth as both a compelling
entertainment attraction and a passionate conservation body. We stayed true
to our mission, and this sharp focus was accompanied by an equally vigorous
determination by management and staff to ensure our operations are as
environmentally-sustainable as possible.

Looking ahead, the future looks good because | can see that we are at the start
of a bright new era. We have wonderful opportunities for growth, in terms of
spare land for further development, and our proven ability to build traffic from
many geographic and demographic markets. We have successfully unveiled an
early component of the MRP and this strong product development will continue.
We will soon see the Ocean Express funicular ride transforming the dynamics
of how our guests experience the Park. The new Entry Plaza leading to Aqua
City will provide yet another fresh encounter. | urge everybody in Hong Kong to
share our excitement and join us on this exhilarating journey that is transforming
Ocean Park into the world’s best marine-based theme park. We have a unique
opportunity to establish the new Ocean Park as a world-class, must-see
landmark that will surely strengthen Hong Kong as a premier family destination.

Here in Hong Kong, combining the best of both east and west, we are well
positioned for weathering this time of change and | am confident that both our
wider economy and Ocean Park will come out of this stronger. As our annual
report went to press, it appeared that the worst effects of the global economic
downturn might pass by the end of 2009. China’s stimulus measures have been
particularly beneficial. There is good reason also to believe that the human
swine flu will eventually diminish as a threat to public health.
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I'd like to close by thanking the people of Hong Kong for their loyal support,

as well as our guests from elsewhere in China and overseas. We express our
gratitude also to the tour operators, our business and conservation partners,
our friends in the media, the HKSAR Government, the Hong Kong Tourism
Board, the Board of Ocean Park Corporation, our retired Board members, and
our valiant staff for their hard work during the year. | am proud to be part of the
amazing team that delivers continued success at Hong Kong's People’s Park.
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What stood out in the past year was

how we were able to rise above Tom Mehrmann
[EE3%
unprecedented challenges, thanks Chief Executive

to our forward-looking management
planning, strong product offerings,
our loyal guests, our talented
employees, and our ability to quickly
identify market shifts, and to respond
to these accordingly.
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Rising Above Adversity

Ocean Park closed one of the best years in history with attendance of over
4.8 million, and the enormously successful opening in April of Amazing Asian
Animals, the first major milestone within our exciting HK$5.55 billion Master
Redevelopment Project (MRP). Furthermore, we showed true dynamism as we
moved forward, introducing new programmes, new events and new activities
while expanding market reach and enhancing our existing operations through
different capital improvement projects.

What stood out in the past year was how we were able to rise above
unprecedented challenges, thanks to our forward-looking management
planning, strong product offerings, our loyal guests, our talented employees,
and our ability to quickly identify market shifts, and to respond to these
accordingly. Among the many issues we addressed were the continued impact
from the economic downturn, new visa policies in the Mainland, fluctuating
tourist numbers, debilitating typhoons and rainstorms, and the human swine
flu outbreak. Despite these severe tests, the sheer professionalism of our entire
team shone through as we held our strong market position, and reinforced the
foundation for achieving more great years to come.
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Building On Our Vision EEES
Ocean Park built on its vision to provide excellent guest experiences in a theme ELNERNERGRESETHER BEARXEA

park environment connecting guests with nature. In the year, we took the media EEER - FRN - BRIV R EEE AR T

on a 'hard hat tour’ of the Ocean Express, the world’s first and only themed (Y8 Tih RAE—BEE2HRHEEREBELBANIT
funicular system that runs in a tunnel within a theme park. We welcomed the EREREILIERE RS - N Bt REEESHT
Town Planning Board's conditional approval for the proposed development REZBSEMTHRETBATEFAR=RBEEE
of three hotels at Ocean Park, an initiative that is separate from, but will FTEl - bR EFERTEIINGGTE] B ERSHEAR
complement, the MRP. We demonstrated the strength once again of our “Big ZEEAREEA TSRS E - B R AIE
Five" annual events strategy. Our overseas marketing campaigns reinforced the FEAAMETE) : OFINTBHERE S BIRER
strong appeal we have for our Mainland Chinese guests while building awareness B Atz ARSI 71 - B EHERSINZEEET
of Ocean Park in many other international source markets. Complementing HeMBMEER T8 BIERUREMRERESRA
these many successes were other positive steps forward in our food and retail HRER b2 LB ARERSEE -

operations, staff development, and IT systems.
BESE DEHEE

Meeting Unprecedented Challenges With Style AR REE SSEABARERNE N\ TBHASALK:

Ocean Park recorded an annual attendance of over 4.8 million, down just 5% on last =22 ET)\BMBREESRENELETRABAR
year's historic record. Given the tough operating environment, the relatively mild ATKRT A A - ERIENEERIFTT L85
impact on attendance demonstrated the resilience of our operation. In-park revenue TR RCIE - 7B T RPN IE RIS A B IRE MY
was HK$243.7 million and admission revenue was HK$649.8 million, an increase of BE WA T E B EREAE —EOT=8+t+
0.5% and a 5% drop, respectively, compared with last year. The percentage split B IRREABENERThRENTEL  2RRE
between these revenue streams was 27% (in-park spending) and 73% (admission), FHESZER AR TREDZ Ao L EFHRES
which was a progression from the previous year's split of 26% and 74%. This was in AHEBIPZERANEERAEEDZ T EHES 2
line with our goal to grow in-park revenue as a percentage of total revenue. The Park += R E—AVREENEIZ T AHESZE
also recorded a final surplus of HK$98.6 million. Cash flow from operating activities TUEARA  EEFARLEF AR NRESENREGE

LREBR—H- LR EREFAEGEREENTN\A
NTETHNRSG BmEE PR RORBDRSRBE -
BrtT=A=18r ZFAREE=F_—T=A8-

was HK$273.3 million, compared with HK$323.0 million for the previous year.
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Wowing Our Guests With Our “Big Five” Annual Events
Here at Ocean Park, our passion is to create the best guest experiences through
a portfolio of best-in-class and one-of-a-kind attractions, while staying true to our
founding mission to educate and connect people with nature. We achieve this by
constantly renewing the experiences and the way our guests see the Park.

Our “Big Five" annual events injected colour and excitement into the year, with
creative promotional campaigns in Hong Kong, the rest of China and overseas.
The year kicked off with our sensational Kung Fu Panda attraction, themed on
the Dream Works Animation feature-length animated blockbuster. This landmark
collaboration with Dream Works Animation entertained guests with exhilarating
scenes and icons from the movie. As one of the only theme parks in the world
that is home to four giant pandas, Ocean Park was the perfect platform for
presenting this attraction. With our pandas serving as education, conservation,
and goodwill ambassadors, we worked with Hongkong Post through our
conservation and charity arm, Ocean Park Conservation Foundation Hong Kong
(OPCFHK) to provide specially created commemorative Giant Panda Stamps,
which included a Giant Panda Paw Print. The funds raised went directly towards
reconstruction efforts for 12 of the severely damaged panda reserves in Sichuan.
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After the summer fun, our renowned Ocean Park Halloween Bash kicked in,
based on a totally new “fear formula” with 350 ghastly ghouls, eight new
haunted houses, nine spellbinding show titles with 40 performances, and three
scary zones — all on top of our 35 regular favourites.

Our Ocean Park Christmas Sensation took guests on a fun-packed journey
through lush pine forests, icy landscapes, Santa’s toy factory, sky high
adventures and then on to African safaris. With this event following closely

on the heels of Kung Fu Panda, we again collaborated with Dream Works
Animation and gave guests the chance to step inside scenes from the Christmas
movie blockbuster Madagascar — Escape 2 Africa. With our feet planted firmly
in the community, we also invited people from more than 70 local schools,
universities, district councils and business chambers to join our Hong Kong
People’s Favourite Christmas Trees programme, which involved decorating
the 200 Christmas trees in Ocean Park'’s ‘starlight forest’ under the themes of
‘Conservation’, ‘Cyber’, ‘'Romance’ and ‘Around the World".
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For the Year of The Ox, we brought the biggest “bull market” to Hong Kong

with the Ocean Park Lunar Lucky Fiesta starting end of January. Our festivities
combined new attractions and shows, 168 auspicious dishes and 88 creative
retail items, and a lucky draw with HK$8 million worth of attractive prizes. We
also raised money for conservation by giving guests the opportunity to own a
replica of the special blessing “Hui Chun” written by top celebrity Andy Lau with
a donation of HK$10.

Last, but not least, as a way to respond to the sagging economy and the

impact of job losses and an uncertain financial future for the community, we
launched the incredible “Get an Extra Ticket for $1" promotion for our Ocean
Park Easter Egg Carnival that ran from April to May. During the promotion
period, guests enjoyed a myriad of “Get an Extra for $1" offers covering food,
drinks, and skill games. We also gave our guests the chance to enjoy the unique
interactive adventure of our GoGreen Fun Ride circuit, featuring our popular
and environmentally-friendly Segway people movers. For our younger guests,
we partnered with Kinder Surprise and offered tens of thousands of Kinder
chocolate eggs as prizes for children competing in our Easter Bunny Challenge.

Our sequence of these “Big Five” annual events underpins our success and is
part of a strategy to make our software (our themed events) drive our hardware
(our attractions). This powerful combination gave us flexibility, and enabled us to
introduce new products throughout the year, while, at the same time, optimizing
the value of our existing assets.
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This is our eight-attractions-in-one themed area, and home to the flagship Giant
Panda Adventure, with its iconic half-dome structure made entirely of ETFE
(ethylene tetrafluoroethylene.) This is also where rare species such as the giant
panda, red panda, Chinese giant salamander, Asian small-clawed otter, the Chinese
alligator, and unique varieties of gold fish, reside. In fact, these iconic animals were
featured in our television advertisement which played to an all-time local favorite
tune, “Kowloon, Hong Kong"” accompanied by “Wow! It's My Park!” The campaign
drew a fabulous response from the public, especially the local community.

Amazing Asian Animals also featured the Park’s premier retail and F&B

facilities — Panda Kingdom Shop and Panda Café. The new facility also has

two classrooms overlooking one of the panda habitats, allowing us to take
interactive learning to a whole new, close-range, level. To underline the
educational significance of this new attraction area, nearly 50,000 primary
school students across Hong Kong celebrated the opening with us by submitting
tens of thousands of remarkable art works as part of the Amazing Asian Animals
Creative Teaching Materials Contest.
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Pandas Bring Fundraising Relief to Sichuan

Our animal ambassadors - Ying Ying and Le Le — turned three in August and we
celebrated their birthdays in style. With the Sichuan Earthquake in May 2008
still etched in our memories, we continued efforts to focus guest attention and
empathy to support the Giant Panda Base Rebuilding Fund set up by OPCFHK.
With this in mind, we invited our guests to “lend a helping hand” with a donation
and make a hand-print signature on a 30-meter long birthday card for Ying Ying
and Le Le, which was set up near the Main Entrance.

Big Steps Forward for the Master Redevelopment Plan
(MRP)

We have entered the middle stages of our MRP, the six-year initiative that will
deliver new products and attractions over a total of eight phases, taking Ocean
Park to a new level by doubling the attractions, from the existing 35 to over

70. Much of the infrastructure work has been completed, with the first major
attraction area — Amazing Asian Animals — enjoying a stupendous grand opening
that was attended by Mr Donald Tsang, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR.
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We made tremendous progress with the Ocean Express funicular system during
the year and showcased the project by taking our media friends for a sneak
preview in March. The Ocean Express was once dubbed an impossible feat —
owing to the need to dig a tunnel inside Brick Hill - yet our exclusive “hard hat”
tour demonstrated that we were well advanced in pulling this off. The Ocean
Express makes Ocean Park the only place in the world with three ropeway
systems — our two well-known cable car systems and the new funicular

system that runs in a tunnel. This ambitious project underlined the “Anything is
Possible” attitude of the Ocean Park team.

As we push on with our MRP, we will ensure that all our plans are conducted with
financial rigour and scrutiny, while maintaining the balance between the needs of
our guests and the redevelopment. We call this “the business behind the fun.” For
example, we addressed guest requests for more air-conditioned indoor sit-down
dining areas in the Lowland with the opening of Panda Café. We will continue to
offer the best value for money with even more immersive experiences while the
construction progresses through each phase, and we look forward to the mid-to-
late 2010 opening of Aqua City, our next MRP attraction area.

Keep The Best and Improve The Rest

The Park embarked on the MRP on the premise, and promise, to “keep the best,
and improve the rest.” In line with this, ongoing capital improvement projects

will ensure all our iconic attractions will always be presented in tip-top condition.
Additionally, we introduced stronger and more colourful graphics to add life and
depth to supporting guest amenities such as our food outlets and retail shops,
the facades of our back-of-house buildings, as well as our Guest Comment forms.
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We also commissioned major facelifts and renovations of the restrooms

using the same bold brushstrokes for the exterior, and employing user- and
environmentally-friendly design and facilities. These include water conserving
auto faucets and flushing systems, energy efficient lighting and layout, as well
as standards-compliant baby-care rooms. All existing restrooms in the Park will
be renovated in phases to this new benchmark.

Another exciting project was the renewal of our Guest Relations Centre at the
Headland. Here, pleasing and relaxing hues were used to bring out the open and
welcoming ambience that greets guests when they visit.

The Ocean Park website is a crucial interface with our guests and potential
guests, and in April, we launched the new look website with user-friendly
navigation set against bright and cheerful backgrounds.

To pave the way for the future communication needs of Ocean Park upon
completion of the MRP, work has already started to bring state-of-the-art IP
(Internet Protocol) telephony to all existing facilities and back offices, and the
infrastructure for the coming new products and attractions is being planned. For
example, we are working on a new super data centre that will have eco-friendly
features. This data centre will also support new POS and admission technologies
that will be introduced to complement the MRP.

What's New
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Bringing World-Class Hotels to Ocean Park

We welcomed in the new year with the Town Planning Board's conditional
approval of the Section 16 application for the proposed development of three
hotels at Ocean Park. Prior to its submission, we engaged with and listened to
the neighbourhood community, and addressed their concerns. We will sustain
this dialogue as and when the developer / operator teams commence the
projects in the future.

The three hotels will each have their own distinctive theme, which will reflect the
Park’s mandate of education and conservation. The proposed hotel development
will bring valuable new jobs during and after construction, and its infrastructure
will enhance the tourism appeal of both Ocean Park and Hong Kong.
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Taking Inspiration From The Chinese Sturgeons

The arrival of the Chinese sturgeons at Ocean Park marked the beginning of one
of our most important new conservation initiatives in the past year. This was

a partnership spearheaded by China’s National Aquatic Wildlife Conservation
Association (NAWCA). While the research continued after the accidental death

of one fish shortly after it arrived at Ocean Park, the programme was temporarily
halted after seven months, when two of the fish showed signs of distress and ill
health and later died. The experience paved the way for greater learning, set a new
direction for our research collaboration with Mainland partners, and has enabled
us to forge valuable new links with top conservation professionals. We will present
the Chinese sturgeons from a broader perspective by providing insights into the
diverse aquatic wildlife in the Yangtze River. All this will be showcased in the soon-
to-be-opened Chinese Sturgeon Aquarium — Yangtze Exploration.
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Showcasing Ocean Park to Our Overseas Guests

Many events can impact inbound tourism and the economic tsunami as

well as the outbreak of human swine flu were good examples of unforeseen
developments that can reverse the flow of tourists overnight. Mainland
policies related to visa controls also affect businesses that rely on Mainland
tourism as a core component of their respective demographic profile. As such,
we had to be constantly on the alert to identify market changes from these
circumstances, and to immediately implement measures to stabilize, or grow,
overseas Visits to Ocean Park.
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For us, the Mainland is a key source of guests for Ocean Park, with 45% of our
guests in the past fiscal year hailing from the Mainland, thanks to the growth in
disposable income and the aspiration among China’s public to travel to Hong
Kong. In recognition of the importance of this sector, we opened our Shanghai
representative office and made preparations for opening a similar office in
Beijing. In addition, we initiated new campaigns in Guangdong to bring more
frequent independent travellers (FITs) and groups to Ocean Park.

Our overseas marketing also embraced India, the Philippines, Korea, Singapore,
Malaysia and other markets. Recognizing the marked increase in traffic between
Hong Kong and India, for example, we joined trade missions to India with the
Hong Kong Tourism Board. We also recruited a chef from India to ensure Ocean
Park could better meet the culinary requirements of our Indian guests. Another
example concerns the Philippines where, through a combination of joint trade
missions into the country, and trade and media familiarization tours into Hong
Kong, we achieved good growth in the number of guests from this market.

To connect with the local ethnic market, we teamed up with the Philippine
Consulate here to hold a “Fiesta Filipiana” event to reach out to this significant
ethnic community residing in Hong Kong. During the month-long promotion in
June, residents presenting a Philippine passport at our ticketing offices enjoyed
a variety of admission and purchasing discounts.
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23-12-2008

Joint promotions proved to be especially effective and we ran successful
campaigns with China Merchant Bank and Agricultural Bank of China, with credit
card brands, with ferry companies as well as bus and tour companies in the Pearl
River Delta, and with airlines. Ocean Park also hosted the first 150 guests who
visited Hong Kong on the first-ever tour for non-Guangdong Shenzhen residents.

Other initiatives included a collaboration among the three Hong Kong eco-
attractions — Ocean Park, Ngong Ping 360 and Hong Kong Wetland Park - to
offer cross-promotional admission discounts on admission to guests. We also
collaborated with the popular Shenzhen OCT Happy Valley attraction on similar
reciprocal arrangements.

All these promotional activities ensured the Park enjoyed high visibility. In April,
we were excited to receive the latest joint report of the Themed Entertainment
Association (TEA) and Economics Research Associates (ERA) which named
Ocean Park as the world’s 15th theme park based on annual attendance. The
same attendance figures ranked Ocean Park as Asia’s number five and China’s
number one theme park. This industry recognition is a testament to Ocean
Park'’s differential strength and positioning.

Fostering A Safe and Happy Working Environment

Our employees are our greatest asset and it is of utmost importance to the
management to ensure we foster a safe and happy environment for everyone
working with Ocean Park. The efforts we made in terms of employee health and
safety are featured another section of this report.
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This year, we followed up the first Staff Engagement Survey, conducted in 2005,
with the second survey. We kicked off the process in November with over
1,200 staff each completing a questionnaire that would give us an indication of
their thoughts. Over 20 Drill Down sessions with different departments were
conducted upon release of the tabulated results, with the senior management
taking part and listening to employees, and working with them to devise Action
Plans that will help each team and its members to achieve their work goals and
aspirations. The exercise was a 10-month long process and set the course for
positive progress.

Improved Guest Relations

The painstaking efforts we took to attend to guests’ needs resulted in enhanced
guest loyalty, as reflected in the increase in positive comments compared with
the previous year.

Our Exciting New Future Takes Shape

Everybody connected with Hong Kong's People’s Park should look to the future
with great anticipation as our MRP progresses and takes Ocean Park to a new
level as the world's best marine-based theme park.

Ocean Park constantly adapts to changing market conditions, so as to serve
Hong Kong's tourism industry with fresh and compelling new offerings. In 2004,
there were around 14 parks, attractions or other destination opportunities in
Asia; by 2009 that number had grown to more than 30. This growth highlighted
how the competitive landscape is clearly changing. Our success will be
determined by our innovation and entrepreneurial spirit, which will ensure Ocean
Park remains relevant and contributes to the enduring appeal of Hong Kong.
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Awards ==

With the hard work of the past year behind us, a new era of success lies ahead.
Our commitment to build hotel accommodation will boost the Park’s appeal and
lengthen the period of stay, benefiting the entire community through increased
business and job opportunities. As a major tourist destination, guests coming
to Ocean Park will also benefit from direct rail access with the projected 2015
completion of the South Island Line.

As the Park goes through its exciting transformation, we will fix our sight firmly
on our mandate of combining entertainment and education for truly compelling
guest experiences. Our conservation efforts as expressed in our vision of
connecting people with nature are just as alive today as they were when we
opened 32 years ago.

Our success, clearly demonstrated by the awards and recognition Ocean

Park continued to receive, was the result of the collaboration and support of
all our stakeholders. As we move forward, I'd like to offer my sincere thanks
to our guests from Hong Kong and all over the world, our many business and
conservation partners, the different government departments, charitable
collaborators, friends from Hong Kong's tourism industry, and all Ocean Park’s
employees, whose hard work has once again enabled Ocean Park to achieve
remarkable results.

Thank you.
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Mr. Tom Mehrmann as “CEO of the Year”, Asia Pacific Customer Relationship
Excellence Awards 2009
2008-200977 X LETREN T RGBT B R AR 4220092 [#HEHATER 1 5815

Ocean Park as “Outstanding Brand during the Economic Downturn”, and Chairman
Allan Zeman as “Leader of the Year 2008" in Yahoo! Emotive Brand Awards 2008-2009
7 [Yahoo!R IS kA £22008-2009] B & [ Mg R EEREMEAME] -
MRS X RIZR & [2008FE REAY]

TVB Most Popular TV Commercial Awards 2009 - Leisure, Entertainment & Hobbies
TVBERXEVDER E & ALE2009 - JEE - Feis R ik

Ranked 15th in the world, 5th in Asia and 1st in China for annual attendance in
Attraction Attendance 2008 report by TEA/ERA

# Themed Entertainment Association (TEA) X% Economics Research Associates
(ERA)EE R 2 2008F R B A NRIREH - 2 2 N5 ARG SR F B2 R 1567 - 38
MNE RS R EHEFERE1AL

“Award for Outstanding Exhibit (Landscape Display) - Grand Award”. Hong Kong
Flower Show 2009
2009 B BIEARE [HERM - MR - R#E]

Platinum Award in Family Tourist Attraction category of Hong Kong Market,
Reader’s Digest Asia’s Trusted Brands Survey 2009
[2009FBEX R EEME] P RERERETRE] kK [HEEEREHSE]

Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence — Wastewi$e “Class of
Excellence” Label
% [ERRREME | BERERRN — [FHEER] 2/

"5 Consecutive Years Caring Organisation Logo 2008/09" from The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service
BEREBTSREH 2B 5F [RORE

One of the “10 Most Creative Print Awards” of Apple Daily Advertising Award 2008
BRERAZESHR20087 [TARIETHES] #2185

Hong Kong's top ten “2008 Meritorious Websites”
17 [2008HB A5 A8 28 | B4 [2008F B ML | 2 —

HK local brand category of the “Yahoo! Emotive Brand Awards 2007-2008",
Yahoo.com.hk
[Yahoo ! X 1E SR IEA 22 2008-2009] 2 & B AN R £l A fg

u

Winner of “Supreme Service Awards 2008" by Capital CEO
=R CEART &) 2 [FERARF A E 2008

Winner of “Consumers’ Choice — Grand Prize — Travel & Tourism Services” at the
Hong Kong Corporate Branding Award 2008
[EARMEEMEIESR 2008] 2 BEEE AL - kSRR ]
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We endeavour to live up to our aim of being seen as Hong
Kong's People’s Park. This can only be achieved by reaching
out to the community with vigour and sincerity.
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As a responsible corporate citizen, Ocean Park fully understands the role it
plays in the local and global community. As such, we endeavour to manage
our business decisions and activities diligently to ensure positive social and
environmental impacts as well as workplace health and safety.

Making a Positive Environmental Impact

Ocean Park operates as sustainably as possible and continually seeks ways
to enhance its performance in this respect. Throughout the year, we have
maintained our deep commitment to minimizing our environmental impact.

Highlights of our activities included participating in the 5th International Coastal
Clean-up, energy efficiency and waste-reduction initiatives, as well as getting

involved with various global and local green festivals.

All these programmes were implemented by our Environmental Steering
Committee (ESC). This in turn operates through three subcommittees
responsible respectively for encouraging environmental improvements within the
Park, maintaining compliance with green guidelines on design and construction
works, and promoting awareness of environmental issues among Park guests.
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Cutting Waste and Optimizing Energy and Water Usage
Our waste-reduction work was recognized in the Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence, a scheme supported by many organisations,
including the Environmental Campaign Committee, the Environmental
Protection Department, the Business Environment Council and the Hong Kong
Productivity Council. We received the Wastewi$e Label “Class of Excellence” as
recognition for achieving a range of waste-reduction goals.

With the support of our guests and staff, we were able to strengthen the
implementation of our “No Straw Day"” awareness programme at all food and
dining facilities, by holding this event more frequently.

This January we launched our Energy Saving Programme to optimize energy
usage throughout the Park and to encourage the habit of switching off electrical
appliances when not in use. Our Environmental & Safety Ambassadors gave
talks and conducted compliance checks to ensure the effective implementation
of this programme. We also supported the Green Council’s local Green Carnival
by hosting an educational booth that conveyed environmental and wildlife
conservation messages.

Not only was the April launch of our Amazing Asian Animals exhibit a success in
terms of its appeal to guests, the newly opened facility also reflects our careful
focus on environmental care. Waste minimization, as well as energy and water
conservation, were key parts of the design, construction and operational brief
for this project. The exhibit’s retail areas also sell eco-friendly products.
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We also joined the global Earth Day celebrations by putting up park-wide
decorations that saluted the themes of biodiversity and recycling.

Another key development was our environmentally-friendly signage created
from giant panda waste and bamboo fibres. These signs were used to make
important “calls to action,” such as “Recycle,” “Reduce Wastes,” “Save

Paper,” and “Save Water.” We also supported this year’s United Nations World
Environment Day with a film-premiere night conducted with local partners

to arouse awareness on contemporary green issues. In addition, Ocean Park
promoted the sustainable use of oceanic resources by distributing “Citizen of the
Ocean” Passports to guests at Pacific Pier on World Oceans Day in June.

"on

Looking to the future, plans have been made to implement carbon
management measures, as well as introduce sustainable seafood to enhance
our F&B menu offerings.
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Focusing on Health and Safety

We have maintained our vigilance towards our health and safety performance
throughout the year to ensure that our guests and employees continue to enjoy
Ocean Park in a safe manner.

While we have continued as in previous years to address the issues of health
and hygiene carefully, these requirements took on even greater importance
following the first case of human swine influenza in Hong Kong. To ensure that
this and other infectious diseases received close attention, we tightened up our
guidelines covering staff personal hygiene. We also set up additional disinfection
stations and stepped up the frequency at which we conducted disinfection of
public areas and surfaces.

Our staff members have continued to show an encouraging level of enthusiasm
for health and safety disciplines and are acutely aware of how important they
are within Ocean Park. This was evident from the strong support shown for the
third Ocean Park Safety & Environmental Quiz contest. Their enthusiasm was
again apparent when our staff devised an interactive games booth providing
safety tips on theme park rides in support of the Electrical and Mechanical
Safety Carnival held in Victoria Park and organized by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department.
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Sharing Our Business Experiences

Each year, members of the management team, from Department Heads,

all the way to the Chief Executive and Chairman, take time to engage with

the community and share with students and other business professionals

their thoughts on how Ocean Park continues to thrive in a dynamic global
environment. It is hoped that through such sharing sessions, Ocean Park can
help stimulate new thinking among our audiences, and be an agent of change as
Hong Kong continues its rise as an innovative international hub.

Embracing the Call For Social Harmony and Integration
As a socially-caring organization, the Park takes great pride in the range of
schemes that provide either free or reduced-price admission, to enable more
people from disadvantaged backgrounds to visit Ocean Park.

For example, we provided free admission for local people over the age of 65,
a concession that according to government census data is of potential benefit
to 880,000 people in Hong Kong. We also provided free entry to holders of the
Registration Card for People with Disabilities, a group which numbers more
than 40,000 people, with half-price entry for the caregiver accompanying this
category of guest.
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In addition, people from organizations registered with the Social Welfare
Department can buy group tickets at HK$20 per head. These are just a few
examples of how we make it easier for people to enjoy the Park. The total value
to the community of these different initiatives in the fiscal year 2008/09 was
equivalent to HK$52,000,000.

We also welcome all Hong Kong residents — close to seven million —to come to
Ocean Park for free at least once a year, on the day of their birthday, through
our Birthday Promotion.

Bringing Hope To The Community

Above all, we endeavour to live up to our aim of being known as Hong Kong's
People’s Park. This can only be achieved by reaching out to the community with
vigour and sincerity. The entire Park brims with life and a passion to understand
the wonders of nature. During the past year, we made the effort, time and time
again, to share our wonderful resources and facilities with people whose daily
lives have been disrupted by sudden calamities or ill health.

We opened our arms and our hearts to welcome people from Sichuan whose
lives were devastated by the May 2008 earthquake in China, orphans visiting
from the Philippines, as well as many local charitable groups and patients from
children’s hospital wards. To all these people, we offered a day filled with joy

and wonderment, as well as up-close encounters with our animal ambassadors.

Every year for the past 16 years, in either November or December, we have
brought fun and joy to some 4,000 guests with disabilities, along with their
friends and relatives, as part of our support for the United Nations International
Day of Persons with Disabilities (IDPD). The past year was no different and once
again our guests enjoyed free admission.
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We also partnered with key charities, so that they would be able to leverage our
different events to help raise funds for their causes. These included the special
charity preview night in September of our Halloween Bash in aid of Po Leung
Kuk, which raised over HK$1,000,000. For the Christmas period, months of fund-
raising work by Operation Santa Claus reached a climax as the charity body
gathered all the sponsors, including Ocean Park, at SkyFair Plaza for a live radio
broadcast of the closing ceremony of this charity fundraising initiative.

Our outreach to the community also included bringing our iconic mascots to
entertain people at community events, donating complimentary Ocean Park
tickets as exciting prizes in raffles and lucky draws, and collaborating with
business partners, such as the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, in
their “School Partnership Programme,” whereby Ocean Park sent teams from
different theme park occupational disciplines to share work experiences at
forums held at various secondary schools.

It is through initiatives such as these that we touch the lives of so many people
throughout Hong Kong. Embodying fun, laughter and inspiration, Ocean Park'’s
tireless commitment to the local community will continue as we find new ways to
ensure that in the years to come we remain as Hong Kong's People’s Park.

Working Towards a Sustainable Future | @@ T #@im s R | 37

HAMR T EREE R A BBRMIMRIRNED R
HEEEF - aL ol AN AR BME NN 85
RETAERRER ] HERER WEH—HARR
RESBBEE —AET  ERIMEETH [BOEE
RT3 | BREAZSFRDHRDE BFAEE—R
REEENEDE BEE[CRAERM] ERBE
AERT —FA2REEARS D ABHEE-

Btz s HRERRRZ ST AR S WE S D
HRETRITK—F WASFABASPIRE B 5
FmiEs RN REERH RELATEERS
8 (BR8] RE R AEA SR EAETIE
BENKOEEPE EERG EHZTTELNS-

BRBE—FNEN BERERN AT BNEHTR
TORERSE - H ISR E KT FEAIEN B At
[ B ArE  EEREE B RO R 2 BRI ARR AT - A

BRBBNEBANTIERE-

L Ly
G A A F Hong Kond

T B
ol 3 455 o0k




Ocean Park Corporation | 3§ ¥ 2 & | 2008 — 2009 Annual Report 3 # # &

can benefit.
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ornerstone of our work is our annual initiative bringing over 1,000 interactive
and compelling educational programmes to tens of thousands of school
children. Our aim is to truly inspire students in a lively and fun environment.
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Ocean Park is a fantastic educational resource and we see
It as our job to ensure that students throughout Hong Kong
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OPAHK also brings us closer to Hong Kong's educational community by providing
rich teaching programmes that draw enthusiastic engagement from schools.

We are grateful for the warm expressions of gratitude we receive for the
professionalism and enthusiasm of our energetic educators as each year we try
to improve upon the previous year’s courses. Our educators receive professional
training from the Association of Zoos and Aquariums and visit different zoos and
aquariums around the world.

From Pandas to Plants

Our aims at the start of the year were to reach out to more junior secondary
schools and encourage even more teenagers to learn about the environment.
We also wanted to create more diverse programmes to complement the launch
of Amazing Asian Animals.

OPAHK announced a new series of over 30 courses, all of which were in line
with our vales of education and wildlife conservation. As in past years, there
were ten topics: giant pandas and red pandas, dolphins, sea lions and seals,
birds, fishes, sea jelly, Chinese sturgeons, plants, the physics behind Ocean Park
rides and Chinese culture as it relates to the natural world. There were courses
for students aged between 3 and 16 years, with five levels: plankton (aged 3 to
5); shell (aged 6 to 8); crab (aged 9 to 11); octopus (aged 12 to 14); and whale
(aged 1510 16).
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Our two programmes related to Chinese culture were brand new, and were
both anchored in our Amazing Asian Animals exhibit. Our Dragon’s Tale for
children aged 9 to 11 focused on rare animal species such as the Chinese
alligator and the Chinese salamander, and linked these to the role of the dragon
in Chinese culture. The other programme — The Symphony of Nature and Man
—was developed for students aged 12 to 14 to encourage them to explore the
Confucian concept of harmony between the natural world and ourselves, as
well as the related idea of sustainable development.

Our engaging courses allowed young people to experience the wonders of
nature up-close and learn how to care for nature and living things. Above all,
they learned through fun and interaction. Our Animal Super Stool programme

in the past year was just one example of the successful and innovative courses
we developed. The focus in this case was on the faeces of the giant panda, a
surprising topic at first glance but one that underlines the creativity of the Park’s
educators while at the same time linking with important environmental and
conservation themes.

Our core educational programme was a distinct success. We were excited to
record a 15% increase in the number of students from 33,300 in 2007/2008 to
over 38,000 in 2008/2009. Our work brought a direct benefit to everybody who
attended our courses by increasing their understanding of the environment. We
were also proud of the fact that our student sponsorship scheme absorbed the
programme fees in the case of about 1,800 needy students.
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We also developed special programmes to match the different curricular needs
of schools. Project-based and hands-on, these were tailor-made to enhance

the learning of young students at school. We also made every effort to ensure
students with special needs received the same learning experience by arranging
pre-trip briefings and site visits for teachers.

Our Clean Air Outreach Programme, a community initiative supported by The
Hong Kong Jockey Club, once again promoted awareness about environmental
protection and the importance of clean air. Students learned from engaging
interactive activities, as well as colourful exhibits set up on Ocean Park’s
pioneering LPG vehicle. An integral part of the initiative was the Teachers' Day
Camp that let teachers become students again as they learned how to make
use of Ocean Park’s amazing resources in “Nature’s Classroom”.

Our Public Programmes

As Hong Kong's People’s Park, reaching out to the community is second nature
to us. That's why we devised six programmes to provide guests with a closer
look at how we run the Park. Some of these supported the opening of our
Amazing Asian Animals exhibit, with guests getting the opportunity to become
an Honorary Panda Keeper to gain an insight into our animal care routines and
expertise. Another very successful initiative was our Behind-the-scenes of
Amazing Asian Animals tour.
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Looking Ahead

A special focus in the coming year will be to align our activities with Hong Kong's
new academic structure, which will introduce “Liberal Studies” and “Other
Learning Experiences” as compulsory parts of the curriculum. We will offer
courses that target these new requirements, making us one of the few non-
academic institutions supporting local schools in this manner.

Conservation is woven into all our educational activity at Ocean Park. OPAHK
will continue to be a leading provider of environmental and conservation
education in Hong Kong, as well as in the region. These initiatives will continue
as Ocean Park fulfills its mission to educate, and connect people with nature.
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The work of Ocean Park Conservation Foundation

is directly funded by Ocean Park, which contributes

part of the admission fee of each guest, a

percentage of the proceeds from our panda

merchandise and animal encounter programmes,

‘|| and all park admission funds on the annual

- Conservation Day, to the Foundation....This means

that everybody who visited Ocean Park contributed

to nature conservation.
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Funding Valuable Conservation Work

Ocean Park has a passionate commitment to conservation and it is through
Ocean Park Conservation Foundation, Hong Kong that we channel a variety

of regional conservation and research initiatives. While the organisation is a
separate entity set up by Trust Deed, its work is directly funded by Ocean Park,
which contributes part of the admission fee of each guest, a percentage of the
proceeds from our panda merchandise and animal encounter programmes, and
all park admission funds on the annual Conservation Day, to the Foundation.

In the 2008/09 fiscal year, HK$7.48 million went to the Foundation to fund 40
conservation, research and education projects on 20 species. This means that
everybody who visited Ocean Park contributed to nature conservation.

Our zoological facilities have evolved continuously for more than 30 years from
a purely educational centre to become a focus of advocacy and participation
that actively facilitates research within our own facilities. Our animal
collections have a value which goes beyond education; they have become
ambassadors for conservation.
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World-class Accreditation

We are determined to bring the best in conservation to guests as an integral
part of our mission to connect them with nature. Conservation is a cornerstone
of the company’s operations, as well as one of our founding principles, and we
are proud to have a team of highly qualified professionals to conduct our work.
We continue to apply world-class animal husbandry practices and enjoy global
recognition within the zoological community. We have earned and continue

to promote our accreditation from the Association of Zoos and Aquariums
(AZA), an elite and highly regarded group of leading zoos and aquariums that
demand the best standards of care for the animals under their management.
As a member of the AZA, we pledge to work together with other AZA affiliates
to raise awareness around the world of the urgent actions required to support
wildlife conservation. We are also accredited by the Alliance of Marine Mammal
Parks and Aquariums (AMMPA), for our care of dolphins, sea otters and other
sea mammals, and for exceptional education and conservation programmes.
Many of our staff work as senior advisers on a number of important
conservation bodies around the world.

Closer to home, we are a partner with the State Forestry Administration and
Sichuan Forestry Department in panda conservation, and work with leading
aquariums in China to promote aquatic conservation. We also work closely with
conservation organisations in Hong Kong such as the Worldwide Fund for Nature
Hong Kong and Kadoorie Farm & Botanic Garden. The Park and Foundation
continue to be the veterinary and research partners of the Agriculture, Fisheries
and Conservation Department (AFCD) for all dolphin stranding in the territory,
and both assist in the care for confiscated animals such as the protected
humphead wrasse.

We value the opportunities for us to provide ad hoc support to projects
throughout the region. In October, for example, Ocean Park vets took in a green
turtle found in Sai Kung, Hong Kong for treatment and observation. Once it was
fully recovered, our team returned it to where it was found.

EREHRARRE
BAMABARELBEERBMAED  BRIAKR:
REBNRESEANREER XA ABEERRE
WIALERBEBENER BMRSEEEGIEHA
FKERREEFRBAMEBELIE BEFARNEY
ERHEXBERR SERMBESERSYEER
EIRRER - B¥E RKiRER & (Association of Zoos
and Aquariums, AZA)BIRRE B IS S E e 815
FRESHATHREGEDAYENE - ER
BTEEH S R B FEIL R e YRR £
RIERMEFNHBERREED L &S F®HIL
KB YN E KoK iR R B3 (Alliance of Marine Mammal
Parks and Aquariums, AMMPA)R)3278 4N+ A
BTLEIRBEL RS ESHREMBEPREIER
R -

@2 ZEME - RFIEBERME B R B E R T
RRGHRB MR A BRI R - th BRI 2 PR EUK IR AR
B HEEKAEBERE TE- A BfithEERE
RAHUBEENRERERSEEYESREEEEY
BB REREEEFAEREELMEBREE
BREAEEEAE KBEMRAREEM LREESE
JKIBE R SR A 22 - I R B IR BRI R BN -
PR ZEBIRENFRE R

HAPRE T e R M R PR R S A B e BB R FR (1 B
RS - PIETA BF RSB EE—&
EABHERFERNAEETEARES BN
R BHBETERER RPNETERLERES
SRR

Ocean Park Corporation | 3§ % 2@ | 2008 — 2009 Annual Report % % # &

New Veterinary Centre Enhances Animal Care Capability
The year began with the completion of our new Veterinary Centre, the best-
equipped facility of its kind in Asia. Located on the Headland near the Ocean
Theatre, this represents a significant enhancement in the level of veterinary
care we can provide. The Centre continues to support all animals living at the
Park, from giant pandas to our many tropical fishes and exotic birds, using
the latest specialized medical equipment. The veterinary team oversees the
health of all animals at Ocean Park, including more than 62 of the 474 resident
species that are considered threatened or endangered and are listed under
CITES (the Convention on International Trade in Endangered Species of Wild
Fauna and Flora).

Celebrating Our 14th Annual Conservation Day

Each year, the Foundation holds its Conservation Day and we celebrated our
14th annual event in January. This year, we appealed for public support for

the rebuilding of panda nature reserves in Sichuan after last year’s 12 May
devastating earthquake. The day was filled with panda conservation messages,
with a focus on raising funds for the earthquake-torn panda reserves. Ocean
Park generously donated the event day’s gate revenue to the Foundation

to support the Giant Panda Base Rebuilding Fund. Throughout the year, the
Foundation worked closely with the Sichuan Forestry Department to prioritise
the kind of support that should be provided, while Ocean Park — as the
appointed Honorary Technical Advisor — offered expert opinion to the Hong
Kong government on their efforts to help rebuild panda reserve facilities. The
Conservation Day once again underlined the deep commitment of Ocean Park
and the Foundation to enhancing environmental awareness and encouraging
the widest possible involvement in conservation. We look forward to building on
our achievements in the coming year.
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Events

EG]SRELS

Ocean Park Kung Fu Wet And Wild Challenge
WFABRMEKRS

- I mi ‘l |".«:I,m...,

Ocean Park Halloween Bash 2008
EEABETAZHBEE2008

Ocean Park Lunar Lucky Fiesta 2009
BFLAEREXEFE2009

Ocean Park Easter Egg Carnival
FAEREEED

Ocean Park Christmas Sensation 2008
EEABEEHZE o ho ho 2008
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Milestone

Industry Recognition

FE AT

Ocean Park Welcomed In Four Red Pandas From Chengdu
M/ NRESH R B IKEBF AR

Ocean Park’s New Mascots - Redd, Later Gator And Goldie - Are In Town!
EELEFEEY —[NARE] - TREE | R [{HAE ] BXR=HE

Ocean Park Revealed Two Major New Attractions - Amazing Asian Animals & Ocean Express
EAEENMEEZTBERE — (MBI R | R [8F5E ]

Ocean Park Hong Kong Ranked World’s N0.15 Theme Park By TEA/ERA Attraction

Attendance Report 2008

EBEFNERTEA/ERARBASZARHEE2008FER2REISU 2 TERE

Hotel Development

BE R

Ocean Park Welcomed Town Planning Board’s Conditional Approval On Hotel Development

BFAEBRAEA S TN SR TEBABEBERRRE

Concept drawings for the three proposed hotels in Ocean Park
ERRABREN =EEERSE
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Caring Initiatives

EEHADTE

Celebrations!
EOUEE

Ocean Park And OPCFHK Donated Supplies To Facilitate Sichuan Panda Reserve Reconstruction
WEAEREREFAERBESBEIEENM)| AEHERERERITHE

Ocean Park And Animal Ambassadors Warmly Welcome Sichuan Earthquake Survivors And

Quake-Relief Personnel For Day Of Fun

ZEZN)IHBEIEBNATRHUKXABREFAERZ I —RAVELER

Ocean Park Opened Up 25 Trainee Positions To Aspiring Theme Park F&B Service Leaders
WEFLAEMRSETSOFEEERIZIRME ST EFTEAEEMRETERIER

The Country’s Beijing 2008 Olympic Gold Medalists Connect With Nature At Ocean Park Hong Kong
FR2008REFHE HBEFIHEEBEFAE

= )

Family Fun Day At Ocean Park For Hong Kong Athletes Returning From The Beijing 2008 Olympic
Games And The Beijing 2008 Paralympic Games
1 FR2008FREEREREZEBARNEFAEZZRERLA

Ocean Park And Towngas Ignite The Flame For An Historic 30-Year Collaboration
EAERERATFRELMI0OFEKSIE
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Joint Promotions

SIEEE

Education & Animal Conservation
HBETEREYRE

Ocean Park - Ngong Ping 360 — Hong Kong Wetland Park Salute Nature With Reciprocal
Joint Promotion
BEEFAE B30RBBREAEBFHEEEFEEEEAERRY

Shenzhen OCT Happy Valley And Ocean Park’s Collaboration On Reciprocal Joint Promotion
FEFBBREARBEETF L ARBFHLEHER

WA A
s AAE LENLeR. AsnanEE BREHER L-g:nu—mn v

\t"‘!‘! FERCOA. il&ﬁ!“‘!lﬂliﬂ—

AFCD Partnered Ocean Park To Treat And Release Green Turtle
ELNEBAEED AR B ESETE

The 14th Annual Ocean Park Conservation Day Appealed For Public Support On Rebuilding
Panda Nature Reserves In Sichuan
Ft0EEFAERER] FETR SN/ KREERE LSRR
—
E ST 1 S

The 19 Dccan Puark Eamseveatioe .

Ocean Park Academy Expanded Curriculum To Promote Community Education
WFAEBREHNRERSLERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE BOARD OF OCEAN PARK CORPORATION

We have audited the financial statements of Ocean Park Corporation (the “Corporation”) set out on pages 60 to 89, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 30th June 2009, and the income and expenditure account, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Board members’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Board is responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Ocean
Park Corporation Ordinance 1987. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the provisions of the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance 1987 and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Corporation’s affairs as at 30th June 2009 and of its

surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance 1987.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24th September 2009
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30TH JUNE 2009

Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Club debenture

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Current account with the Ocean Park Trust Fund
Financial instruments

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Deferred income

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Government subordinated loan and Commercial loans
Interest payable on Government subordinated loan

Net assets

Financed by:
Capital fund
Accumulated surplus
Hedging reserve
Revaluation reserve

Allan Zeman, GBS, JP
Chairman

BEFLERQT
BEEAER
—EEhFARA=TH
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SAES

RBEE

&

B 5 K BAh LR

B NEERESNERERR
TRTE

RITEMIR S

RBAE
BHREMBNR
BIEWA

RBEEFE

EL=
BRI EE R EEER
BB & S B FLE

BEEFE

BEERR:
RiR&EH
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The notes on pages 64 to 89 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note
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i
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12
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2009 2008
HK$ million  HKS$ million
BEEET B EET
3,280.1 1,627.8
1.5 2.3
3,281.6 1,630.1
27.8 26.7
311 339
01 11
121.0 458.5
1,529.4 1,090.2
1,709.4 1,610.4
470.3 282.0
44.5 34.0
514.8 316.0
1,194.6 1,294 .4
2,775.0 1,387.5
1321 59.0
2,9071 1,446.5
1,569.1 1,478.0
475.0 475.0
1,095.1 996.5
(1.9) 4.8

0.9 17
1,569.1 1,478.0
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2009

Revenue

Operating Costs

Surplus from operations

Depreciation and write-offs

Strategic review and redevelopment expenses
Transfer from the Ocean Park Trust Fund

Net operating surplus

Investment income

Surplus for the year

ELEAT
BEX
ECEENFARASTHLFE

Note
B
KA 14
AR 15
RERER
e R s 5
R MERA R 2 MERE M 17
BESF BEERER 17
RERBRFR
RERA 18
REERER

The notes on pages 64 to 89 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2009 2008
HK$ million  HK$ million
BEEET ENAET
893.5 924.5
(707.2) (654.7)
186.3 269.8
(118.9) (112.9)
(1.9) (2.7

1.9 27

67.4 156.9

31.2 47.8

98.6 204.7
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2009

Balance at 1st July 2007
—TTE A-RER
Surplus for the year
FERH

Fair value gains
NFEW R

Balance at 30th June 2008
ZEEN\FRNAZTBER

Balance at 1st July 2008
—ZT)\F+A-HEH
Surplus for the year
FERH

Fair value losses

AT EETE

Balance at 30th June 2009
—EEAFEARA=THER

FLERQT
BESBX
BE-EENFAAZTHLFE
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Capital Accumulated Hedging  Revaluation
fund surplus reserve reserve Total
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
ERES 2REH Epaal i EfhfREE st
BYRET BYEAET BYEET BYEET BYEET
475.0 791.8 - 0.8 1,267.6
- 204.7 - - 204.7
- - 4.8 0.9 5.7
475.0 996.5 4.8 1.7 1,478.0
475.0 996.5 4.8 1.7 1,478.0
- 98.6 - - 98.6
- - (6.7) (0.8) (7.5)
475.0 1,095.1 (1.9) 0.9 1,569.1

The notes on pages 64 to 89 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2009

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Purchase/construction of property,
plant and equipment

Proceed from sales of property,
plant and equipment

Net proceeds from sales /(purchases) of
financial instruments

Net placements of fixed deposits with
banks with maturity over three months

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Receipt of funds from Ocean Park Trust Fund

Interest paid on Commercial loan

Drawdown of Commercial loan/
Government Subordinated loan

Net cash generated in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and
cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

ELERAT
BeRER

ECEENFARASTHLFE

SETBNRERE
EEEDNFRSE
REFHHRER

EUFLE

L UNESeLE Y S e
HEWZE 3 RREMSHA

HE / (BA) SR TAMSHER

FARB=EAZIMNRITEREZ BFOFER

REFHMAFRSE
MEFTHNWRESRE

WHRESFAEEEEENES
EEERENTIE

REEXER/ BUFHBEER

MEFHELENFRE

RERRESESEWF(RL) /i

FORERRETEEY

RERRESESEWER(BE) / Wi

FRASRASEEY

The notes on pages 64 to 89 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2009 2008

Note HK$ million HK$ million
MiaE BEEER BEEET
19 273.3 323.0
46.2 42.8

(1,593.3) (731.7)

4.9 -

332.0 (219.7)

(521.4) (86.5)

(1,731.6) (995.1)

3.0 2.0

(6.0) -

12 1,387.5 738.0
1,384.5 740.0

(73.8) 679

400.3 3277

(8.4) 47

10 318.1 400.3
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21

General information

Ocean Park Corporation (the “Corporation”) is an independent body incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Ocean Park
Corporation Ordinance 1987. The Corporation’s principal activity is to manage and control Ocean Park (the “Park”) as a public
recreational and educational park. The address of its registered office is Ocean Park Corporation, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in millions of units of HK Dollars (HK$ million), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Ocean Park Corporation on 24th September 2009.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS”, which term collectively includes Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the requirements of the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance 1987.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
instruments and club debenture, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Corporation’s accounting policies. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Standard, amendment and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Corporation.

The Corporation has not elected to early adopt the following relevant new standards, amendment or interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective as at 30th June 2009.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

The Corporation believes the adoption of the above new standards, amendment and interpretations will not result in substantial
change to the Corporation’s accounting policies.

Ocean Park Corporation | 3§ ¥ 2@ | 2008 — 2009 Annual Report % # &

Auditor’s Report & Financial Statements | 2 8 i3k % & R @B H/*E | 65

BFRERT
AR T

21

—RER

BERERE([ARR])RREEFE-NANEF CEFRERAREN) EEETMA LB IDEAELRE - ARRN T BB AEIRMEE
TERRAFLEH T REHEFRE - ARFH M AF BT RFEFRE -

BIERARSA PBHRAANEEBEITIIR U RACEHEFRAEAREERE_STNFNLA- TR AT -
EEEHBRAR

REAMTEHRRAARAN I BSTTBEREAR T AR BEHAN WEBCREMZBOMEFEANERER -

REEE

ARBRPERR TRRB BRI AGBMAN T BT MEER (MR - i FABAHERE B G Rl [ErHER] ) kak
(MEFPERRE))UREBE-—NANEF CEFRERRED) MRERE - UHBROIZBELNALRER AR TAMEAE
FHEBEHRATFETIRTIAMER] -

RETAWBERNMBRRFE2EAE THRSHEE - ENHREE EERAARRN G HEBREPITEEAE - MEMA &
WR B WRBEEERMEMARETHE SREARBR M EEARREFNEIEIEN -

BRAMARERMARB IERF RN LR BT RRE

ARRWEERERRWN TR - Z2TAF A= HLEERBERARER ZAAEIER (SRR

FEHERIER (EIER]) (BT mE 2 2 ]
SETERIFE235E (1ERT) [fEERA ]

ARAEERARGBRAE SEAET RREE T CARFTNGHERERERES -




Ocean Park Corporation | 3§ ¥ 2 | 2008 — 2009 Annual Report % 4 &

Auditor’s Report & Financial Statements | # #f735 & & R M B #® % | 66

OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2

23

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the Corporation’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars, which is the Corporation’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at balance sheet exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income and expenditure account.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Corporation and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All

other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income and expenditure account during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of other fixed assets over their
estimated useful lives.

The Board of the Corporation has conducted a review to reassess the useful lives of property, plant and equipment. This
reassessment has resulted in the lengthening of the estimated useful lives of buildings and certain plant and machinery given
the expected usage, expected physical wear and tear and the care and maintenance of the respective assets. The Board
considers this to be a change in accounting estimate and has accounted for the change prospectively from 1 June 2009.

Depreciation period
Prior to 1 June 2009 Subsequent to 1 June 2009

Buildings 3 -25years 10 - 40 years
Plant and equipment 2 -15years 2-20vyears
Marine mammals 5 years 15 years

Projects in progress are not subject to depreciation. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identified
cash flows (cash-generating units).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds received, if any, with the carrying amount. These are
included in the income and expenditure account.
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

25

2.6

2.7

2.8

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments at fair value through the income and expenditure account

The Corporation classifies its investments as financial instruments at fair value through the income and expenditure account.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

A financial asset is classified as a financial instrument if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are either held for trading or are
expected to be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial instruments are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the Corporation
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Such financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs
are expensed in the income and expenditure account. Financial instruments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Corporation has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments, including interest and dividend income, are
presented in the income and expenditure account as investment income in the period in which they arise.

The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on current bid prices. For unlisted securities without an active market,
the Corporation establishes the fair value by using valuation technigues including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other information that are substantially the same.

Club debentures

Club debentures are classified as non-current assets and are carried at fair value with changes in the fair value accounted for in
a revaluation reserve in equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method with
the exception of catering and merchandise stock which are calculated using the weighted average cost basis. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Corporation will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income
and expenditure account within ‘operating costs'.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

(a) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost to the Corporation of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Corporation. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(b) The Corporation operates two defined contribution schemes, both of which satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions to the schemes are recognised in the income and expenditure
account as incurred.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Corporation has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is

more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably

estimated.

Revenue recognition and deferred income

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Corporation and the revenues and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income and expenditure account as follows:

(@) Admission revenue

Revenue from admission tickets sold are recognised when tickets are accepted and surrendered by the customer. Revenue
from tickets sold for use at a future date is deferred until the tickets are surrendered or have expired.

Revenue from annual passes is amortised evenly over the period of their validity.
(b) Sale of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered to the customer; which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership.

(c) Interestincome

Interest income from bank deposits and securities is accrued on a time-apportioned basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and rate applicable.

Research and development

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects relating to the design and testing of new or
improved fixed assets are recognised as fixed assets where the technical feasibility and intention of completing the fixed asset
under development have been demonstrated and the resources are available to do so, cost are identifiable and there is an ability
to use the asset that will generate probable future economic benefits. Such development costs are recognised as a fixed asset
and amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the related fixed asset. Development costs that do not meet the
above criteria are expensed as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset
in a subsequent period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation

The Corporation is exempt from Hong Kong taxes under Section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.
Leases

The Corporation leases facilities where the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor and as such classifies
them as operating leases. Payments are made under operating leases are charged to the income and expenditure accounts on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Grants, donations and fund transfers

The Corporation applies the principles of Hong Kong Accounting Standard 20 “Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance” ("HKAS 20") in respect of grants, donations and fund transfers received and receivable from the Ocean Park Trust
Fund and Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (“"HKJC"). Amounts provided to the Corporation relating to property, plant and
equipment are deducted from the cost of acquisition in arriving at the carrying amount of the assets. Amounts relating to other
expenditure of the Corporation are credited to the income and expenditure account when the related expenditure is incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. These costs are expensed in
the income statement in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
prepare for its intended use or sale.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Corporation documents, at the inception of the transaction, the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Corporation
also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

As such the effective portion of changes in the exchange rate of foreign exchange derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges are recognised in equity.

As the Corporation’s hedges relate to the future purchase of fixed assets, when the hedged item is recognised, the gains and
losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset.
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31

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Corporation’s activities expose it to market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk) and
liquidity risk. The Corporation’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Corporation’s financial performance. The Corporation purchases foreign
currency to hedge certain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the Corporation under policies approved by the Board of Ocean Park Corporation (the
"Board”). The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas
such as foreign exchange risk.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Corporation purchases items internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions. The Board has established a policy

to require the Corporation to manage this foreign exchange risk against the Corporation’s functional currency using
forward contracts or by acquiring foreign currency at the date the purchase is determined. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future purchases are denominated in a currency that is not in Hong Kong Dollars.

The Corporation’s foreign exchange risk management policy is to hedge between 90% and 100% of anticipated cash
flows in each major foreign currency for the term of the contract.

In the current year the Corporation’s purchases were principally in Euros and Japanese Yen. As the Corporation hedges
its foreign exchange exposure, there is no impact to the surplus as a result of fluctuations in either of these currencies
against the Hong Kong Dollars.

(i) Price risk
The Corporation is exposed to price risk because investments held by the Corporation are classified at fair value through
the income and expenditure account. To manage its price risk arising from investments, the Corporation diversifies its
portfolio in accordance with the limits set by the Board.
The Corporation’s investments consist of unit trusts. The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of
these unit trusts on the Corporation’s surplus for the year. The analysis is based on the assumption that the portfolio had

increased/decreased by 10% with all other variables held constant.

Impact on surplus in HK$ million
2009 2008

unit trusts - 4.2

There were no unit trusts held as at 30 June 2009, hence, the Corporation was not exposed to price risk as at 30 June 2009.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
31 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Fair value interest rate risk
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The Corporation’s interest-rate risk arises from long-term borrowings and debt securities. The current borrowings are
comprised of a HKSAR Government loan, which is issued at fixed rates, and the commercial loan which is issued at floating
rates. These loans expose the Corporation to fair value interest-rate risk. Alternatives to the HKSAR Government loan

are not available to the Corporation. The commercial loan is currently charged at floating rates. Based on the current low
interest rate environment, the impact to the surplus or deficit of a shift in the interest rate is considered minimal. During
2009, the Corporation’s borrowings were denominated in HK Dollars. The Corporation strives to arrive at an appropriate
fixed rate environment when the Corporation commences to repay the principal of the loans and analyses its interest rate

exposure taking into consideration different hedging method.

At 30 June 2009, if interest rates on HK Dollar-denominated debt securities had been 10 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, surplus for the year would have been HK$1.0 million (2008: HK$0.8 million) lower/higher as a result of a
decrease/increase in the fair value of fixed rate financial assets classified at fair value through the income and expenditure account.

(b) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Corporation monitors its liquidity
reserve (comprising undrawn credit facilities, financial instruments and cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below analyses the Corporation’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

At 30 June 2009
Government subordinated and Commercial loans
Trade and other payables

At 30 June 2008

Government subordinated loan
Trade and other payables

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Less than Between over

1 year 1 and 5 years 5 years

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
- - 2,9071

470.3 - -

- - 1,446.5

282.0 - -

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Corporation makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Corporation estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired based on historical experiences,

the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Corporation also performs annual reviews on whether the assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.
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5 Property, plant and equipment
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Plant and Marine Projects in
Buildings equipment mammals progress Total

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
Year ended 30th June 2008
Opening net book amount 219.3 216.3 01 501.8 937.5
Additions - 30.0 - 773.2 803.2
Transfer 21.4 529 - (74.3) -
Disposals & write-off (0.8) (1.8) - - (2.6)
Depreciation (41.3) (68.9) (0.1) - (110.3)
Closing net book amount 198.6 228.5 - 1,200.7 1,627.8
At 30th June 2008
Cost 643.0 955.0 4.1 1,200.7 2,802.8
Accumulated depreciation (444.4) (726.5) 4.) - (1,175.0)
Net book amount 198.6 228.5 - 1,200.7 1,627.8
Year ended 30th June 2009
Opening net book amount 198.6 228.5 - 1,200.7 1,627.8
Additions 5.5 38.7 - 1,731.9 1,776.1
Transfer 300.5 260.2 - (560.7) -
Disposals & write-off (0.8) (6.0) - - (6.8)
Depreciation (42.8) (74.2) - - (117.0)
Closing net book amount 461.0 447.2 - 2,371.9 3,280.1
At 30th June 2009
Cost 948.2 1,2479 41 2,3719 4,572
Accumulated depreciation (487.2) (800.7) (4.1) - (1,292.0)
Net book amount 461.0 447.2 - 2,371.9 3,280.1

Borrowing costs of HK$165.28 million (2008: HK$104.9 million) have been capitalised in projects in progress.

The result of the change in depreciation periods summarised in Note 2.3 is HK$1.7 million lower than that which would have been

charged under the previous useful lives.
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6 Club debenture

Club debenture — at cost
Revaluation surplus

7 Inventories

Spare parts and other inventory
Exhibition animals and fish
Merchandise

Catering

8 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Interest receivable
Other receivable
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2009 2008

HK$ million HK$ million
BEEER B EET
0.6 0.6

0.9 17

1.5 2.3

2009 2008

HK$ million HKS$ million
BEEET BEHEET
14.8 15.3

3.7 49

7.7 5.2

1.6 1.3

27.8 26.7

2009 2008

HK$ million HK$ million
BEEER B EET
11.4 6.6

171 249

2.6 2.4

311 339

Trade receivables that are less than 90 days past due are not considered impaired. As of 30th June 2009, all trade receivables
were less than 90 days past due, and hence were not impaired (2008: Nil).

All the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are denominated in HK Dollars.

The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate their carrying values.

BEIDNNT BNESRUR T REREERE - R_ZTNFA=THE MEEZREFEESH N NHR S ERECTEN

FoE)e

AREHE SN MR REES A R B

B 5 N HA UG A FERREERE -

Ocean Park Corporation | 3§ ¥ 2@ | 2008 — 2009 Annual Report % # &

Auditor’s Report & Financial Statements | #8184 & R @58 % | 81

OCEAN PARK CORPORATION ELAE QT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ BA#§3RaRMiaE
9 Financial instruments SRITA
2009 2008
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET B EET
Debt securities (EV e
- Listed in Hong Kong -HBLET - 18.3
- Listed outside Hong Kong - BEERINET - 36.7
- Unlisted - 3E kT 121.0 3611
121.0 4161
Unit trusts B ES - 42.4
121.0 458.5
10 Bank balances and cash RITHBRES
2009 2008
HK$ million HKS$ million
BYEEHER BB EET
Fixed deposits with banks with
maturity less than three months DR =EAEIEARIERTTE AT K 621 2411
Cash at bank and in hand BITFERRRE 256.0 159.2
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 31841 400.3
Fixed deposits with banks with
maturity over three months 838 =1 A B AR 1T RE B AR 1,211.3 6899
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIRS 1,529.4 1,090.2

The effective interest rate on fixed deposits with banks with maturity over three months was 2.9% (2008: 4.3%); these deposits
have an average maturity of 365 days.

BB ={E AR RITERERNOBEEREFERR2IE(CTTNE  A3E)  WEFRHN TR A R365K
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10 Bank balances and cash (Continued) MITHEBRES(E)
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

ARRMRE MRS EENRIMEA T EEABEA -
2009 2008
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEEHET BEEET

HK Dollar BT 235.5 305.0
US Dollar ET 0.3 0.3
Japanese Yen Hit 15.9 28.5
Renminbi AR 0.4 15
Euro BT 66.0 65.0

3181 400.3

HK$81.9 million (2008: HK$93.5 million) of the Corporation’s cash and cash equivalents are designated as hedges of future
purchases of the Corporation. The foreign exchange loss of HK$6.7 million (2008: foreign exchange gain of HK$4.8 million) was
recognised in hedging reserve.

ARFREEIIAE LR MRS SE (TTT/\F 93 5B B IEE RIEARKBENE T e TABTN A RERCEE/\F: 480
EITH BRI ER) B RER N -

1 Trade and other payables BSREMENR

2009 2008
HK$ million HK$ million
BEREBT A¥KEER
Trade payables E O 148.3 79.6
Accrued charges FEREA 317.8 199.2

Interest payables FEARTFILE, 17
Accrued deposits TEUEIE 2.5 3.2

470.3 282.0

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are denominated Hong Kong Dollars.
The fair values of trade and other payables approximate their carrying values.
NATIRIE 5 R Bt e R AR E B LA B R B -

BH & EAMBEN RO A FERREERS -
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Government subordinated and BRNEBERREEXER
Commercial loans
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2009 2008
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEER BEEHET

Government Subordinated loan (Note a) BB E R (FisEa) 1,387.5 1,387.5
Commercial loans (Note b) REER(FIFED) 1,387.5 -
2,775.0 1,387.5

Under the Master Redevelopment Plan, the Corporation is expanding the Park with an estimated total cost of HK$5.55 billion
introduced by phases over 5 years. The Corporation is funding these commitments through the following:

(@) HKSAR Government loan
With the approval of the Finance Committee of the Legislative Council on 16th December 2005, the HKSAR Government is
committed to providing to the Corporation a subordinated loan of HK$1,387.5 million for a period of 25 years (matures in 2031)

at a fixed interest rate of 5% per annum. During the year ended 30 June 2008, the Corporation fully drew down this loan.

Interest is payable once the loan from commercial lenders is fully paid.

—
S

Commercial loan
The floating rate loan facilities from commercial banks consist of two tranches:

(i) HK$1,387.5 million 15-year loan guaranteed by the HKSAR Government under the approval by the Finance Committee of
the Legislative Council on 16th December 2005. During the year, the Corporation fully drew down this tranche; and

(i) HK$2,775.0 million 15-year project loan
There has been no draw down on this commercial loan.

The facilities mature in 2021 and bear interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 0.25% to 0.80% per annum.

RIFEFRAEBE S ARRRIEESFAD BIRESFRE - FREHEASEES55ETT - NARFEBA T EFCETTRE :

(a) BBHBITRERITER

SOREWBEZREGCR SR RF T ATNRLE BB TR BT A R —FE25F B (2031F2IH) - B EFHRSE B

1,387.5A BB ER - ARREN T N\FRA=THLEFEANZ IR TZEER
EREEFRANEREBERR  DFEMBNFE -

(b) BEER
KA ERITHYZ S B R AR AR AEAK -

(i) B¥13875AB LR FEEESYBZEGN TR RF T - A AIERBE BB ERNSFHAER - ARATERFA
2RI T U A BT K

(ily B¥2,775.08& T AR 15FHNIER BN
LS RIEARRIMARIABHEEER

WERN T —FIH WIREBRTTEEIFEN0.25E =0.80E1 8
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14

Capital fund

At 1st July 2007, 30th June and

1st July 2008 and 30th June 2009
RZZZLF+LA—H ZTTNF

NA=THEMEA—BAK
—ETAFRA=TH
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= EYNEIUNG]
B sRaR M

BEXES

Donations from
The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust

HK$ million
BEREFGEE
FREELBR
BEEHET

450.3

Contribution from
the Ocean Park
Trust Fund

HK$ million
ERESER
BERET

24.7

Total

HK$ million
st
BETET

475.0

The funds of The Ocean Park Trust Fund are used to finance the cost of promoting the functions of Ocean Park Corporation as
specified in the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance 1987.

REEE—NNLF CEFRER

Revenue

Admission income
Merchandise income
- sales of goods

- commission from franchised retail stores

Catering income
- sales of food and beverage

- commission from franchised food stores

Other

L'ON

ANZZFRA
[EILEAON

- HEEM

- FRHEETEERS

BEHRIRISRA

- HERMNER
-FIHRERERS

HAh WA

RIEGE RE B AREERESNESAARNER EF AR AR S IERAL

2009 2008

HK$ million HKS$ million
BEEET BEBEETT
649.8 6819

86.1 88.9

14.5 1.6

118.7 115.5

5.1 5.2

19.3 21.4

893.5 9245

Admission income and merchandise income from the sale of goods noted above are stated before deduction for the following
donations to Ocean Park Conservation Foundation, Hong Kong (“OPCFHK"):

(i) one day’s admission income on the 10th January 2009, named as the 14th Conservation Day amounting to HK$1.3 million

(2008: HK$2.3 million);

(i) HK$1 per paid admission income (excluding (i) above) to OPCFHK amounting to HK$4.4 million (2008: HK$4.6 million); and

(i) contribution from the sale of panda merchandise items and animal interactive programmes amounting to HK$0.8 million

(2008: HK$1.3 million).

ERAFIOASFRAAEREHEEROERRARKIRA T REEEFAERE EDEHBB:

() ZZTNF-ATHETNETIESFRAERE AL RARHEE1 38 8T (C2T/\F  BE238 &)

(ily WEBAASBERAMBEL () TREEE - TRAEEEEFAEREED HihEA BT (CETN\F  BBIEET) &

(ill) ESHERAMR R M LB 2 EEE B R AT BB 0AEL(CETE/\F K138 E8T) -
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Expenses by nature

BFLERT
PR ER AR P RE

BEUESENER

Expenses included in operating costs are analysed as follows:

FIFEEERANNBERDHTINT :

Cost of inventories sold

Employee benefits (Note 16)
Repairs and maintenance

Utilities

Advertising and promotion

Animal

Show and exhibition

Auditors’ remuneration

Donations

Interest expensed on opened facilities
Professional fees, office and other

Employee benefits

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Pension cost — defined contribution plans

EHFEMA

R BAE MBS (T 7E16)
HERREER
NAFEERER
EEREEER
FRBIAA
FBEMRBERA
ZEEN &

B

PR HE RO A B F 5
BHE BLERAKEME R

BERAEX

BN TE K HARER
RIRE R - FEHKEHE
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2009 2008

HK$ million HKS$ million
BEEET BB EET
621 60.2
362.9 342.8
48.4 431

a41.7 401

541 45.8

10.0 9.7

58.9 53.2

0.3 0.3

7.5 11.0

6.9 0.9

54.4 47.6
707.2 654.7
2009 2008

HK$ million HK$ million
BEEER BEEHET
342.3 323.3
20.6 19.5
362.9 342.8
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18

Strategic Review and redevelopment expenses/transfer from the Trust Fund
KEMERNREFTRREA/EEEIAEGERES

In 2002, The HKSAR Government appointed a task force to review the structural challenges facing Ocean Park and tourist
attractions in Aberdeen. Pursuant to that review, the Corporation engaged third party consultants to assist management in
exploring strategic development opportunities and to develop proposals for the Park’s future development to present to the task
force for consideration. The costs incurred by the Corporation in this regard, together with costs of conducting feasibility studies
and other incremental expenditure related to this project and the hotel development project, are funded from the accumulated
earnings derived from the assets of Ocean Park Trust Fund.

ER2F FERITHRERFZ A/ MR REF A ERENEBIEE . URETBHEZIRERENE S - REBEGER
AREINEREM B E R EERRREEREE WA FARNARRERRDES HEENEEE -ARREESIEN L 85
TR E R LA MBS ERAESEENEMMS L REF AEEREASEEMELNRERBIT

Investment income REBA
Investment income comprises the following: &R ABHE
2009 2008
HK$ million HKS million
BEHERT EFBEST

Interest income from financial instruments & & TEFIBITHFE

and bank deposits FLBHA 38.4 441
Net realised gain on sale of financial HESRMTARER
instruments BieFE 4.6 1.0
Net unrealised (loss)/gain on financial SRl T AREH (R8)/
instruments o (11.8) 2.7
31.2 47.8
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Cash generated from operations EEEENRS
2009 2008
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEERT B¥AET
Surplus for the year FER 98.6 204.7
Adjustments for: FHRIAR -
- Depreciation and write-offs (Note 5) - PTE R IMEH (T EES) 118.9 1129
- Interest income from financial instruments - &t TR RRITERAIF BUA
and bank deposits (Note 18) (FFFE18) (38.4) (44.1)
- Realised and unrealised loss/(gain) on -SRI ARER R AREEEE/
financial instruments Che) 5.5 (3.8)
- Unrealised exchange loss - REREHEE 1.7 0.1
Operating surplus before changes in EEESEEAMN
working capital BERR 186.3 269.8
Changes in working capital EEERE
Increase in inventories FEEN (1.1) (1.6)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 K EAth FE YR G 00)/
receivables e (5.0) 1.1
Increase in current account with the EEFENRETEESMHER
Ocean Park Trust Fund RRIBIZE N (2.0) (2.9)
Increase in trade and other payables E )R Hth ERFIE M 84.6 56.8
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income REW AL AR 10.5 (0.2)
Cash generated from operations EETHEENRSE 273.3 323.0
Ccontingencies RARER

The Corporation has provided bank guarantees totalling HK$9.0 million (2008: HK$6.7 million) to the Corporation’s utility providers.

FRBMSERAAEERBIRETAHBRO0BEBTL(CTTNF  BK6T7TABIT)HIRTTHER
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21 Commitments i
(a) Capital commitments (@) BAEYE
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as follows:
REERBNREENEARRMNT:
2009 2008

HK$ million HK$ million
BEEER B EET

Contracted but not provided for BEETAVE R 1,295.6 777.8
Authorised but not contracted for BEIRREE R 1,494.7 3,626.2
2,790.3 4,404.0

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) BB E=IE

The future aggregate minimum lease payments for leased facilities under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

RETAFROCERSTAERNORERENSRENT:
2009 2008
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BB EET

Within 1 year —FR 0.3 0.7
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years ~ —FA HETNBBERF - 0.3
0.3 1.0

(c) The Corporation has entered into agreements with third party consultants for developing proposals for the Park’s future
development, which will be reimbursed by the Ocean Park Trust Fund. The outstanding commitments at 30th June 2009 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

RATEINEBEREF BT AR R EREZNELN -EHERKHEF A AREAESIN RZETNFAA=THERE
RN AREIERER AR B EFEORENT
2009 2008
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEER B EET

Contracted but not provided for BEATAME R 7.3 8.6
Authorised but not contracted for EERER R 1.1 17

8.4 10.3
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OCEAN PARK CORPORATION BEABE AT
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22 Related party transactions BT X5
Parties are considered to be related to the Corporation if the party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Corporation
or exercise significant influence over the Corporation in making financial or operational decisions. The Corporation had no related
party transactions during the year.
MREX—FALTBENEESEEEFIARFSEARTNIBHLEARBEEAT RS WEALENE RRARIRIRRE - NAF]
EARFEINRBBH RS

23 Attendance BEEAR

Attendance at Ocean Park for the year ended 30th June 2009 was 4.8 million (2008: 5.0 million).

BEZTNFA=TELEFER EBFAENBETEISHEARNCEZ/\F 5008BAR)-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE TRUSTEE OF OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND

We have audited the financial statements of Ocean Park Trust Fund (the “Fund”) set out on pages 92 to 104, which comprise the balance
sheet as at 30th June 2009, and the income and expenditure account, statement of changes in accumulated funds and cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Trustee’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Trustee is responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong
Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance 1987. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you in
accordance with the provisions of the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance 1987 and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Trustee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at 30th June 2009 and of its deficit

and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance 1987.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24th September 2009
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BURBERES
HEFLAEEEREEITEA

ARZEEMCA TN [FF) ) ERZINBENENRE104EEFAEETED([ZEL ) WPBRE WY BBREER-_ZETAFA=TANE
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30TH JUNE 2009

Current assets
Interest receivable
Financial instruments
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Accounts payable

Net assets

Financed by:
Accumulated funds

Allan Zeman, GBS, JP
Chairman,
for Ocean Park Corporation as Trustee

BELEETEES
BEEAER
—EEhFARA=TH

RBEE
JEUH 2.
TERTAE
RITREBMES

REBAEE
FERRRR

BEEFE

BEERR:

BRE GBS JP
E3i

TEREFTENEFRERRNRE

The notes on pages 96 to 104 are an integral part of these financial statements.

FI6EFE104E I i B AT MK —F0D
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2009 2008

Note HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
(pysa BT BETT
5 560 458
306,055 352,505

28,263 26,784

334,878 379,747

6 203 1176
203 1176

334,675 378,571

8 334,675 378,571
334,675 378,571
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2009

Interest income
Dividend income

Net realised (loss)/gain on sale of
financial instruments

Net change in unrealised loss on
financial instruments

Management fees
Transaction rebate
Auditors’ remuneration

Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)

Transfer to Ocean Park Corporation

Net deficit for the year

BELAEEEES
BEX
ECEENFARASTHLFE

Note
B

TR TAAREREE

HEFE
EBE
X5 E D
ZEE B &

e 2 Wiz /(B3 1R) R

BESTAEAT 9

FEEBRFHE 8

The notes on pages 96 to 104 are an integral part of these financial statements.

SFI6EF104E MM L B AT MK —F0D
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2009 2008
HK$ ‘000 HKS$ ‘000
BT BT
2,583 3,821
9 54
(16,677) 3,315
(27,515) (5,496)
(465) (530)
6 -
(20) (19)
110 (658)
(41,969) 487
(1,927) (2,736)
(43,896) (2,249)
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ACCUMULATED FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2009

Total accumulated funds as at 1st July

Net deficit for the year

Total accumulated funds as at 30th June

BELAEEEES
ERESEHXR
BE-EENFAA=THLFE

REA—BNERBEES

FEEBETR

RAAZTENAREES

The notes on pages 96 to 104 are an integral part of these financial statements.

FI6EFE104E I i B AR —FD
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2009 2008
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT BETT
378,571 380,820
(43,896) (2,249)
334,675 378,571
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2009

Cash flows from operating activities

Deficit for the year
Adjustments for:
- Interest income
- Unrealised loss on financial instruments
- Net realised loss/(gain) on disposal
of financial instruments

Operating loss before changes in
working capital
Changes in working capital
- Decrease in accounts payable
- Increase in current account with
Ocean Park Corporation
Interest received
Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales of financial instruments
Purchases of financial instruments
Payment of funds to Ocean Park Corporation

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash

BELAEREEES
BeRER
ECEENFARASTHLFE
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2009 2008

HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT BT

EETHNRESRE

KEEEBE (43,896) (2,249)

FEIEE -

- MU A (2,583) (3,821)

- R T ARSI EE 27,515 5,496

-HESRTADEIREIE/

(Mezs)F5E 16,677 (3,315)
EEESEHAINCEER (2,287) (3,889)
EiEEE
- ERBRFOR D (13) (5)
- EUEF ABEARIE A R ARTEIE N 2,040 2,845
EHFILE 2,481 3,807
EETHELENFRS 2,221 2,758
RETHNEESRE
HESRTAEMSRIEA 136,953 71,839
BASBMTAE (134,695) (67,523)
S isa/NNG] (3,000) (2,000)
BRETE(ER)/ELENFERS (742) 2,316
ReRBELESEYFEM 1,479 5,074
ENRERBEEEEY 26,784 21,710
FRECRELEEY 28,263 26,784
ReERESEEYIN
BITHBEERS 28,263 26,784

The notes on pages 96 to 104 are an integral part of these financial statements.

SFEI6EF104E ML BAME MK —FED
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2.2

General information

The Ocean Park Trust Fund (the “Fund”) was established on 1st July 1987 from an endowment of HK$200 million granted by The
Hong Kong Jockey Club (Charities) Limited. The Trustee of the Fund is Ocean Park Corporation, and the funds are used to finance
the cost of promoting the functions of Ocean Park Corporation as specified in the Hong Kong Ocean Park Corporation Ordinance
1987 (the “Ordinance”). The address of its registered office is Ocean Park Corporation, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in thousands units of HK Dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Trustee on 24th September 2009.

Ssummary of significant accounting policies

The principal significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRS”, which

term collectively includes Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the requirements of the Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared under historic
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial instruments, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Fund’s accounting policies. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Standard, amendment and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Fund.

The Fund has not elected to early adopt the following relevant new standards, amendment or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective as at 30th June 2009.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

The Trustee believes the adoption of the above new standard, amendment and interpretations will not result in substantial
changes to the Fund'’s accounting policies.

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the Fund’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in

which the entity operates (‘the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars, which is the
Fund’s functional and presentation currency.
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PATE IR =

21

2.2

—RER

BERERERES([AER )R -NANEFEA—BRI BEEREFBERE(EE)ARAFNABB2ETHER - AEENIEARE
FHRERF MELBRREE-NNEF CEFREATEN) RPrHRA AR ERSFARAFNRL ALENEMoL REEE
BFEFRE -

BIEARARA PBHRINEE TR - BB RMAC AT EAE S TAFAA T OASETE -

EESHEERE

REATHEHRRARANIESHBERBN T BB ARAN WERREMZBNAEFENERER -

REEE

A BRI BRBE LGRS MAGNT B FHREE(THHER]  HRERAEERREGIEN( TSR] ) R ([&5
ELRE] ) ARBE-NNEF CEFRERRERND) MRERE - MBRRCERELRALER TR TANEGRIZATET
BRI FLMERT

RETAWEERNM B RRF2EAE THRREHEE - ENREEEEERAAESN ST REBREPTEEAE - HEMHE &
WR AR WREAERBRMEMRRETHE SREARBER TMREEARREHNEIEEN -

BRNARERMAES TERPRANER BT LRE

AESW MBI RN TN - TEAFNA=THIEEBMERARERZABEIER BRI kaE -
FEPERIFE R (ERT) [ mR 2 2]

ERARERA LIER BT RRBE TS AESNSHERERERE D) -
TEEMFIRE "

AESHBEREMIBRANERLEMENT BLBERENERHE([WEEE] ) - MBERERNBEZR BEASAESH TGN
BB
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2.4

2.5

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments at fair value through the income and expenditure account

The Fund classifies its investments as financial instruments at fair value through income or expenditure accounts. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

A financial asset is classified as a financial instrument if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are either held for trading or are
expected to be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial instruments are recognised on trade-date — the date on which the Fund commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Such financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed

in the income and expenditure account. Financial instruments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
The Fund also enters into foreign currency forward contracts. These contracts are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured to its fair value. Changes in the fair value are immediately recognised in
the income and expenditure account as other gains/(losses).

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments, including interest and dividend income, are
presented in the income and expenditure account in the period in which they arise.

The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on current bid prices. For unlisted securities without an active market, the
Fund establishes the fair value by using valuation techniques including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to
other information that are substantially the same.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks.

Revenue recognition

Interest and dividend incomes are recognised on an accrual basis.

(a) Interest income from bank deposits and securities is accrued on a time-apportioned basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and rate applicable.

(b) Dividend income from financial instrument is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Taxation

The Trust Fund is exempt from Hong Kong taxes under Section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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3 Financial risk management

31 Financial risk factors
The Fund's activities expose it to market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk) and liquidity risk. The
Fund's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Fund's financial performance. The Fund purchases foreign currency to hedge certain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the Fund under policies approved by the Board of Ocean Park Corporation (the “Board”). The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Fund is exposed to foreign exchange risk as the Fund holds financial instruments that are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars, Euros and United States Dollars.

At 30 June 2009, if the Hong Kong Dollar has weakened/strengthened by 10% against the Euro with all other variables

held constant, deficit would have been HK$5.5 million (2008: HK$5.5 million) lower/higher, arising from foreign exchange

gains/losses on the translation of Euro-denominated investments.

As the United States Dollar is linked to the Hong Kong Dollar, any exposure due to currency fluctuation is not significant.
(i) Price risk

The Fund is exposed to price risk because investments held by the Fund are classified at fair value through the

income and expenditure account. To manage its price risk arising from investments, the Fund diversifies its portfolio in

accordance with the limits set by the Board.

The Fund’s investments consist of unit trusts. The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of these

investments on the Fund’s deficit for the year. The analysis is based on the assumption that the unit price had increased/

decreased by 10% with all other variables held constant.

Impact on deficit in HK$ million
2009 2008

unit trusts 221 282

(iliy Fair value interest rate risk

The Fund's interest-rate risk arises from financial instruments. At 30 June 2009, if interest rates on HK Dollar-denominated
debt securities had been 10 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant, the deficit for the year would
have been HK$2,165 (2008: HK$21,218) higher/lower as a result of a decrease/increase in the fair value of fixed rate
financial assets classified at fair value through the income and expenditure account.

(b) Liquidity risk

The policy of the Board is to transfer funds only where they comply with the Ordinance and when the fund has sufficient
liquidity. The fund is not subject to significant liquidity risk as all funds remain invested and its liabilities are minimal.

3.2 Fair value measurement
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Fund is the current bid price. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an

active market is determined by using the recent arm's length transactions with reference to other information that are substantially the same.

The nominal values less impairment provision of trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.
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OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND BEABEGTEES HELEGETES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  BF &Rk MizE

OCEAN PARK TRUST FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B3Rk MicE

Critical accounting estimates and PRSI E R HE Accounts payable PR 2009 2008
judgements HK$ ‘000 HK$ '000
BT T BT T
Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. There are no critical estimates in applying the entity’s Current account with Ocean Park BEGF AR ARIMERARIE
accounting principles. Corporation (note 7) (F7E7) 90 1,050
(B HEEw FHERT  WARBRB A AR E M AR ETHE  REEABIE R MEEEARREHNEIEIER - AE SIS EERN Accruals and other payable FEEHE FA I EoAth FE TR 113 126
ERBRF  WESKARE S
203 1,176
Financial instruments 2RMIA
The financial instruments held by the independent investment managers at the year end were: Current account with Ocean Park ESF NE QR ERIRIE 2009 2008
Corporation HK$ ‘000 HK$ '000
RERBBRELCEFENSRIANT: BT T BT T
2009 2008
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000 Balance payable as at the start of the year FEEH 1,050 205
BT T BT T
Audit fee paid by Ocean Park Corporation BERAEARRAESINE
Unlisted debt securities I LMEBES 84,919 70,115 on behalf of the Fund ZHE A 19 18
Unit trusts BAEFRES 221,136 282,415 Staff costs paid by Ocean Park Corporation — BFAERRRAES TR
on behalf of the Fund BIKAR 94 91
Foreign currency forward contract INEIREREH - (25)
Transfer to Ocean Park Corporation (note 9)  BEAFFABEAA)(HIFE?) 1,927 2,736
306,055 352,505
Payments made during the year FRRR (3,000) (2,000)
Balance payable as at the end of the year FREH 90 1,050
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8 Accumulated fund 2EES 2009 2008
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT BT

Endowment granted by the Hong Kong BEERE(REE)ARAF
Jockey Club (Charities) Limited COEEFN 200,000 200,000
Accumulated retained income Z2FERBUA
- As at the start of the year - FEERR 178,571 180,820
- Deficit for the year - AFEEE (43,896) (2,249)
As at end of the year FRER 134,675 178,571
334,675 378,571
9 Transfer to Ocean Park Corporation BHESFAEAH 2009 2008
HK$ ‘000 HK$ '000
BETT BT T
Transfer to Ocean Park Corporation [ Ka s e NIV 1,927 2,736

Ocean Park Corporation engaged third party consultants to assist management and incurred other costs to perform a strategic
review and feasibility studies of the Park, which is being funded by the Ocean Park Trust Fund.

The above funding arrangements were all approved in Board meetings of Ocean Park Corporation, which acts as Trustee of the
Ocean Park Trust Fund.
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